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Heritage conservation in Penang remains the domain of both good news and bad news. First, the good news! As
we go to print at the end of the second quarter of the year we celebrate the move of the Penang Heritage Trust to
its new office premises at 26 Church Street, a mid 19* century shophouse restored as
close as possible to its original design and outfitted inside fo meet the requiremenis
of our office. We also congratulate the winners of the 2006 Living Heritage
Treasures of Penang Awards announced at the official opening of the new PHT office
on 26™ June.

i

Another good news story is the near completion of the restoration of Suffolk House,
the most important great house of Penang s early history. We reprint reports on the
launch of an inmovative scheme to raise funds for the final stage to complete this
project for the benefit of the people of Penang (Please see page 6 & 7 for more
information).

As we welcome the opening of the new PHT office, we also bid a fond farewell to our
former rented affice-space at 264 Stewart Lane, PHT s home for eight years. Leading i
from the Goddess of Mercy Temple to Love Lane, Stewart Lane sadly typifies the . AT . 4
decline of inner-city George Town with rows of pre-war shophouses unoccupied and 26 Church Street
allowed by their owners to fall to pieces through neglect or malevofent design.

This brings us to the not so good news! Penangs commitment to
heritage conservation continues to be measured by the fate of its
priceless landmarks — mot only success stories such as Suffolk House
but others facing an uncertain future like Runnymede, Homestead
and the former Uplands School site (St. Joseph’s Novitiate on
Gurney Drive), conspicuous, beautiful and historic buildings
important to Penangs heritage and identity. A recent visit by a
group from the Kuala Lumpur based Badan Warisan Malaysia
(Heritage of Malaysia Trust) drew attention to some of these
buildings as the common heritage of all Malaysians not jusi of the
people of Penang. It is hoped that the concern expressed by
members of PHT & BWM over the future of Runnymede (both the
former hotel building and the house once the residence of Thomas Stamford Raffles)
and St. Joseph's Novitiate (particularly the beautiful former chapel) will translate
into action to prevent these sites from falling victim to heedless “development”.

In the case of the former Uplands site, we feature a computer-generated projection of
the proposed massive high-density development. We cali for public consultation on
the planned project and we ask how a property acquired by a religious body for
Institwtional purposes can later be sold and converted to commercial purposes.

While these major sites must engage our concern, we should not lose sight of the
destruction of the many “micro” heritage sites that is continuing day by day
throughout historic George Town without a murmur of disapproval from the
authorities. Thus, we begin a series that documents this wanton and careless
destruction through photographs by one of Penang’s leading heritage architects.

Guest Editor
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ial Opening of 26 Church

Official Opening of 26 Church Street
The permanent home of the Penang Heritage Trust
25 June 2006

After many years of struggle, together with the effort and help of many individuals and organisations, and after
many months of painstaking restoration work, we are delighted to finally have a permanent home for the Penang
Heritage Trust,

The official opening ceremony of 26 Church Street took place at 10a.m. on Sunday, 25 June 2006. It was officiated
by the Deputy Minister of Arts, Culture & Heritage, YB Dato” Wong Kam Hoong, and witnessed by a distinguished
list of invited guests.

26 Church Street is believed to have been constructed more than 140 years ago around the 1860s. It housed an
carly-mercantile establishment in the island port settlement, and is especially important as an example of a very carly
shop house prototype.

Although double stroreyed, it is considerably lower than the neighbouring houses, an indication of its carlier, and
more modest, origins. At that time, buildings were significantly lower in height, less flamboyant, and generally more
unassuming.

These “lesser” buildings, often termed “transitional™ shop-houses, are considered as under greater threat as their
presence on the street is overshadowed by the more elaborate and larger buildings of the turn of the century, when
wealth was more evident.

The Penang Heritage Trust is proud to have undertaken the restoration of this significant building for its permanent
home. Adhering to the best practices guidelines of UNESCO and regulatory requircments of the local authorities,
this restoration project showcase the economic viability of restoring such shop houses for modem adaptive reuse.

The Trust is confident that its experience in such adaptive reuse restoration will spring-board the main-streaming of
conservation consciousness, particularly critical for the listing of Georgetown as a World Heritage Site.

The purchase and fit-out of this historic mid 19" Century vernacular shop-house, as a permanent home for the
Penang Heritage Trust was achieved through the fund-raising efforts of its members and friends and generous
donations from the Penang State Government, the Malaysian Ministry of Tourism, the Malaysian Ministry of
Culture, Arts & Heritage and a supportive corporate seclor.

The meticulous and painstaking restoration of the building was made possible, primarily through financial support
by American Express®, through the World Monuments Watch®, a programme of the World Monuments Fund®.
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Official Opening of 26 Church Street
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Living Heritage Treasures of Penang Awards 2006
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honours incorporated the
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For 2006, a number of individuals and groups were nominated, and they represent a wide range of skills and
expertise, coming from the fields of visual arts, traditional crafts, culinary skills, martial arts, literature and
performing arts.

An estcemed Panel of Judges, chaired by Dato® Shahrom Ahmad, selected
three winners for 2006. The winners are :

Mr Yeap Seong Kee (age 81)
Master Kebaya Designer

Mr Kok Ah Wah (age 66)
Last Remaining Handcarved Signboard Engravm.

Mdm.Ooi Sew Kim (@ Ooi Ah Kan
Hokkien Glove Puppet Theater ‘Phor Tay Hee ' Master

The presentations to winners were made by the Deputy Minister of Arts, Culture &
Heritage, YB Dato Wong Kam Hoong.

by Jack Ong ., photograph by Timothy Tye, ARTS-ED & Mdm. Qoi
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Heritage Alert~ Former Uplands Site
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Heritage Alert~ Former Uplands Site

SUPPORT CONSERVATION EFFORTS

IN YOUR COMMUNITY!

e 26 Charrch Strvwt, 10000 Pomang, Maasia

Tel: 604-284 2651 Fare 604-262 821

Press Releas Fmai :hrNd':t"ﬂu. Lo

Websne ar hirp J/{ www phicog ey

Daie: 12 July 2005

Proposed development of former Uplands School site on Gurney

Drive

I'he lovely property with the fine French style building on Gurmney Drive has been
sold and the present tenant, the International School of Penang (Uplands), will be
moving out shortly to make way for re-development

This property was acquired in 1916 by the La Salle Brothers for a novitiate and
training college for teachers who wished to devote their lives to teaching in the
schools which the Brothers had established in various parts of Asia.

From the early 1960s the college also accepted lay students who, upon graduation,
were accepted by the Ministry of Education for absorption into the national teach-
ing service. By the carly 1980s the college ceased 1o function and the property
was leased to Uplands School

The building facing the sea was officially opened on 17" April 1918. It was fur-
ther extended in the years 1923 to 1927 by the addition of a third floor, a gymna-
sium and the much admired chapel which dates from 1925

The Penang Heritage Trust considers this site to be historically significant and
would urge the new owner and the MPPP to bear this in mind when considering
the redevelop of the property. At all costs the chapel must be preserved not only
for its architectural merits but also as a reminder of the important historical role of
the La Salle Brothers in education in our region.

No doubt, in due course an enormous commercial-cum-residential edifice (which
we need as much as we need an acute bout of dysentery) will sprout up on the
site. We would urge the state and municipal authorities to consider very carefully
any application to develop this property,

We can foresee traffic becoming a very serious problem in future. As it is there is
already congestion on Jalan Kelawei and Gumey Drive particularly on weckends
and public holidays mostly caused by vehicles coming out from Gumney Plaza.
Another equally large or even larger development next door can only exacerbate
the situation. Anybody who believes the vet un-built PORR will alleviate this
problem is mistaken. If anything the PORR exit at Jalan Pangkor will make the
problem worse.

The MPPP must require the developer to commission a proper traffic study by an
established expert before the any development application can be considered.
Unless great care is taken with this aspect of planning there is a danger that the
whole area from Tanjung Tokong to Jalan Sultan Ahmad Shah will be engulfed in
a permancnt traffic grid-lock. to our collective woe

In the considered wisdom of carly planners, the land is zoned for 'Institutional
Usc'. Before any development can take place, the condition of land use will have
to be changed to ‘Commercial Use." The power to do this is vested in the State
Executive Council. Since this is a major development with cnormous ramifica-
tions for all of us, in the interest of good governance and transparency, the PHT is
asking for public consultation before any planning approval or land conversion is
granted.

Penang Hentage Trust

Page 9
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Articulating Penang’s heritage
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Finally the truth was revealed and
itmercifully ‘killed’ the years of
speculation. There is no evidence
of any dumping of executed rival
secret society members in the well
of the compound of the former
notorious Kien Tek Society during
the civil strife known as the
Penang Riots of 1867. The area
around the well in the compound
of Hock Teik Cheng Sin Temple
was carefully excavated under the
supervision of conservators to
verify the persisting urban legend.
The fact: the ‘well’ was justa
cylindrical water container placed
at ground level and it was placed
there in 1984, 117 years after the
Penang Riots.

The 40 PHT members who took
part in the 30" April site visit were
completely enthralled by the
briefing by Restoration Committee
chairman Mr Tan Lye Hock and
Research Subcommittee chairman
Mr Tan Lyc Hoe, followed by a
slideshow presentation by
Principal Heritage Project
Consultant Mr Tan Yeow Wooi on
the conservation and restoration of
the temple. Hock Teik Cheng Sin
Temple was the headquarters of
the Kien Tek Society, a secret
society based in Armenian Street.
The land was granted by the
British colonial government in 1850

to Khoo Teeau Pang who then
established the Hokkien-based
Kien Teik Society which had the
Muslim-based Red Flag Society as
its ally.

These two secret societies were
drawn into a feud with the
Cantonese-based Ghee Hin Society
which had the Muslim-based
White Flag Society on its side.
The conflict developed into ten
days of intense unrest, catching
the colonial government
unprepared. The rots were
suppressed and eventually
resulted in the 1890 Society
Ordinance banning secret
societies.After the dissolution of
the Kien Tek Society, its
headquarters site was acquired by
Mr Khoo Thean Poh and two other
persons. On 4" December 1890,
the trustees of the Chinese Traders
Society (Hock Teik Cheng Sini)
bought the site and it became a
temple dedicated to Tua Pek Kong
and named “Hock Teik Cheng Sin
Temple™,

The present temple building
appears in a George Town survey
building plan dated 1881-1893,
showing it as a double-storey
bungalow-type structure with a
protruding porte-cochére. The
building, together with nine

adjacent shophouses, dates from the
mid-19" century and not later than
1867.Between 1908 and 1949, four
organizations — Tong Kheng Seah,
Poh Hock Seah, Cheng Hoe Scah and
Hokkien Kongsi - moved to and
settled in Hock Teik Cheng Sin
Temple. Three of these organizations
worship different deities, namely Sin
Long Siang Tay, Tua Pek Kong and
Cheng Chooi Chor Soo. Hence, Hock
Teik Cheng Sin Temple was
transformed into a multi-Scah, multi-
deity temple.

Hock Teik Cheng Sin Temple is
inevitably a spiritual focal point of
the Hokkien community in Penang,
particularly the Goh Tai Snch (Five
Big Clans), the clans of the five major
surnames in Penang: Khoo, Cheah,
Tan, Lim and Yeoh. Incidentally,
clanhouses of each of the Goh Tai
Sneh are located within close
proximity to each other in the
Armenian Street enclave.

The idea of restoring the dilapidated
Hock Teik Cheng Sin to its former
glory was first mooted in 2002
despite a lack of funds. Tan Lye
Hock was appointed project
chairman and the temple, its
trustees and their affiliated Seahs
pledged about RM104.000.
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Site Visit Report April 2006 (cont'd)

The first phase entailed comprehensive research, documentation and planning and Phase Two the actual
restoration and conservation work. Phases One and Two are expected to cost about RM 1.3 million and are about 80
percent complete. Phase Three will start after the completion of Phase Two and will involve the restoration of the
temple’s gate-way and gate-house. The project will conclude with landscaping of the temple’s compound in its
final phase, Phase Four.

PHT members were given a tour of the temple after the briefing and slideshow presentation. They were shown the
ancestral tablet of Khoo Teeu Pang and relics of the Kien Tek Society. Yeow Wooi took the PHT group to view the

“secret” doorways that had been bricked up until their discovery during restoration work.

The visit ended with PHT members adjourning to “Edelweiss Cafe™ across the street for scrumptious cakes served
with hot cinnamon tea. “Edelweiss™ is an example of a successful adaptive re-use of a pre-war shophouse.

Report jointly by Yong Check Yoon and Tan Yeow Wooi

Lefters

Craig houses in ®Penang
7 May 2006

I have just read an article on No 15 Brown
Road in your recent newsletter (Issue No. 86)

Following preliminary research, it was thought

From: Gwynn

Date: November 28, 2004 9:55:39 PM GMT+08:00
To: Laurence Loh

Subject: Craig houses in Penang

Stark and Maclaren -
Chief architect David Macleod Craig

that Brewer had designed 15 Brown Road.
Unfortunately, the article quoted from
superseded correspondence which noted this
belief. However, this was publicly updated
by Dr. Jon Lim, during fiis visit to Loke
Mansion in November 2004,

As PHT members were present at the Loke
Mansion and no doubt heard Dr. Lim's
fascinating talk, they may now be extremely
puzzled by this conflict of imformation.

Below you will find the e-mail sent to PHT
and others, following the site visit, which
corrected the earfier research, but seems to
have been overlooked in the writing of this
article.

I hope that PHT will set the record straight,
and perhaps consider passing any article to

those quoted so that we can assist in checking

the relevance of the quotation.
Regards,
Guuynn Jensins

15 Brown Road 1917 - Srilankan buildings style - Ans and
Crafis
Loke Mansion 1924 - Edwardian Arts and Crafls

Comparison for identity of the Loke Mansion and 15 Brown
Road

Corner buttress and column detail Slentical

Three dimensional decorative curl 1o bracket identical

Round window - similar
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Site Visit Report May 2006~ Runnymede

A group of eighty PHT
members attended the
May Site Visit at
Runnymede on Sunday,
28 May, 2006 from 2:30
~4:00 p.m. PHT
president Dr Choong
began by apologising
that due to a mix-up
with another heritage
tour conducted in the
morning of the same
day, there was nobody
to give us a proper
briefing. Nevertheless,
we were told that the
briefing given was not so
much about the history

of Runnymede, but rather on its recent use as a military base.

Loh-Lim Lim Lee provided an explanation as to the background of Runnymede as one of Penang'’s premier
hotels and its earlier association with Stamford Raffles. A few senior participants of the tour related their
experience, some having stayed there when Runnymede was a British army officers’ leave centre, while
others knew of relatives who had. After this informative detour down memory lane, we proceeded lo
explore the complex on our own. We began our tour at the grand ballroom which was once the watering
hole of Penang's elite during the 1930s. (See copy of Runnymede Hotel 1936 New Year's Eve dinner menu
reproduced in PHT Newsletter Issue No. 85.) Later on, the same ballreom was used as a wedding venue
for the military officers of the Royal Malay Regiment.

To get the photographs | needed for the Penang V
Heritage Trust and AsiaExplorers websites, | detached
myself from the group and did my own little exploring. In
this way, | came away with photographs of the
Runnymede complex without showing too many people
in the shots. Before the site visit, | did my own research
on Runnymede and have written about it on the
AsiaExplorers website, an excerpt of which is
reproduced below.

The Runnymede is the name of a collection of
properties which once served as lhe residence of
Stamford Raffles, who later founded Singapore. Raffles
armrived in Penang in March 1805, to serve as the
assistant secretary to the new Governor of Penang. In
1807, he commissioned a new house to be built along
the North Beach. This house was named Runnymede,
after the field on which King John of England signed the
Magna Carta. It was a single storey building with
louvred wooden window shutters, carved balconies,
deep cool eaves and large, open living spaces within.
During his stay at Runnymede, Raffles’ two sisters
came to live with him and his wife.
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In 1811, Raffles was transferred to Malacca, and Runnymede was put up for sale. From then on, it
transferred ownership through many hands until 1921, when the roof of Runnymede caught fire and the
whole house was destroyed. After the fire, the surrounding buildings were bought over and turned into a
hotel, run by two Scotsmen, W. Foster and H. Parker.

The main three-storey seafront building of the Runnymede Hotel was only built in the 1930s - so it was
never there during Raffles’s time. It houses a huge R T

ballroom on the ground floor, with guestrooms on
the first and second floors above. The British Navy
took over the hotel in 1940, while the Japanese
used it as a military base during the Occupation. It
reverted to the British Government for military
occupation in 1951 until 1957, when the British
sold it to the Malayan government for M$1.00.

Since then, Runnymede was known as Wisma
Persekutuan, and was used as a government
resthouse. The military has recently moved out,
having secured a new base at Bukit Gedung and is
temporarily between occupants.

Runnymede grand ballroom

by Timothy Tye
Photos by Timothy Tye, Leslie A.K. James

Editor’s Note:

At a briefing for members of a group from Badan Warisan Malaysia that visited Runnymede on Sunday
morning 28" May, Malaysian Army 2 Division chief-of-staff Colonel Ramli provided some information on
the transfer of ownership of the Runnymede site under the Ministry of Defence “privatization policy".
According to this information, the Runnymede property has been transferred to a company called
Warisan Pinang Sdn Bhd in exchange for property at Bukit Gedung which has been developed as Camp
Tun Razak, the new HQ of 2 Division. Warisan Pinang Sdn Bhd (managing director Datuk Mohd Ramzan
Ibrahim) is responsible inter alia for “The Sanctuary”, an exclusive RM425 million housing and
condominium project being developed at Batu Uban which is
expected to be completed in 2010.

Runnymede was vacated by 2 Division in April 2005 but remains

under MOD control pending resolution of outstanding difficulties

regarding the “privatization” arrangement with Warisan Pinang Sdn
Bhd. Meanwhile, a Territorial Army battalion is expected to occupy
the Runnymede premises for the next two or three years. This will
assure the continued preservation and maintenance of this important -
heritage site at least in the short term. *

the double-storey house to the east of the main hotel wing and
linked to it through the lobby. This building is believed to be the
original "Runnymede”, the house occupied by Thomas Stamford
Raffles and his first wife Olivia, accompanied by Raffies’s sister
Mary Anne, during their stay in Penang (1805-1810). Destroyed by
fire in 1921, the house was the residence of the 2 Division
commanding general during 2 Division's occupancy and, according
to Colonel Ramli, was a favourite retreat of the late Tun Razak,

Malaysia’s second Prime Minister and former Minister of Defence. Raffies House showing five
19th century columns
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Street Mementoes of Penang Histo

The carcful obscrver wandering the streets of George Town will encounter many signs of days gone by — from
colonial post office pillar boxes to manhole covers with proof of George Town’s status as Malaysia’s first city.

Perhaps Pos Malaysia can explain what has happened to the King George VI post box that formerly stood outside
the old Pulau Tikus post office under renovation on Cantonment Road.

2 o S +
City Council of George Town (CCGT) o W
sewer cover on Esplanade near Fort Queen Victoria post box with
modern Pos Malaysia King Edward VIl post
counterpart on Beach Street box, China Street Ghaut

Text & photos by Lesile A.K. James
Merchandise Sale
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